
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, May 12, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Economic Development Council and Covington Chamber of Commerce Board is 

scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION  

• National Public Works Week Proclamation – May 17-23, 2015 (Lindskov) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  April 28, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission and April 28, 

2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss & Consider Parks & Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee (PRePAC) Charter (Thomas) 
2. Discuss Health Insurance Benefits for Councilmembers (Lanza/Beaufrere) 
3. 2015 First Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

• To Discuss Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400) 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  May 12, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  APRIL 28, 2015 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT 

STUDY SESSION WITH HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION MINUTES AND 
APRIL 28, 2015 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the April 28, 2015 City Council Special Joint 
Study Session with Human Services Commission Minutes and 
April 28, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 50



Unapproved Draft – April 28, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  May 12, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission Minutes 

Tuesday, April 28, 2015 
 
The Special Joint Study Session with the Human Services Commission was called to order in the 
City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
April 28, 2015, at 6:05 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Leslie Hamada, Fran McGregor, and Lesley Schlesinger.  
 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Joyce Bowing, Nia Dhillon, Brian Lord, and Adam Wheeler. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; Richard Hart, Community 
Development Director; Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the special joint study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Review Commission Recommended Revisions to the Human Services Master Plan 
Assessments and Goals. 
 
Personnel & Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm gave the staff report on this item. 
 
The Council offered suggestions for the revisions to the Master Plan. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
The Mayor invited the Commission to join them at the Listening Session at Kentlake High 
School on May 6. 
 

2 of 50



Unapproved Draft – April 28, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  May 12, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

3 of 50



Unapproved Draft–April 28, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 12, 2015 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, April 28, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, April 
28, 2015, at 7:05 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City 
Engineer; Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Aquatics Supervisor Rachel Bahl accepted the May 2015 National Aquatics Month 
proclamation. 

• Parks & Recreation Commission Chair Laura Morrissey accepted the April 24, 2015 
Arbor Day proclamation. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  March 24, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #32296-32360, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 

Transfers, in the Amount of $292,971.37, Dated March 20, 2015; Vouchers #32361-32410, 
including ACH Payments, in the Amount of $168,805.40, Dated April 3, 2015; Vouchers 
#32411-32470, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers, in the Amount of 
$144,492.77, Dated April 17, 2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003551981-1003551998 

4 of 50



Unapproved Draft–April 28, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 12, 2015 
 

 2 

inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $171,351.63, Dated March 27, 
2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003606428-1003606444 inclusive, Plus Employee 
Direct Deposits in the Amount of $167,608.65, Dated April 10, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1003658969-1003658988 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003659084-
1003659084 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $177,457.36, 
Dated April 24, 2015. 
 

C-3. Accept Aquatic Center Roofing Project. 
 

C-4. Approve Consultant Contract for 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update. 
 

C-5. Approve Amendment to Extend Contract for Park Maintenance. 
 

C-6. Ratify City Manager Signature on Landscaping Maintenance Contract. 
 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Fran McGregor reported on the April 9 meeting. 

: 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair Laura Morrissey reported on the April 15 meeting. 
 
Arts Commission – Vice Chair Ed White reported on the April 9 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Community Development Director Richard Hart reported on the April 
2 meeting.  The April 16 meeting was canceled. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the March 26 and April 
23 meetings. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Discuss Mandatory Garbage Collection. 
 
Public Works Director Don Vondran gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Vondran provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to select Option 1:  direct staff to prepare 
for council consideration a draft ordinance making residential garbage, recycling, and yard 
waste services mandatory within the city limits. 
 
2.  Update on Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian and ADA Improvements Project Design. 
 
Public Works Director Don Vondran introduced this item, and City Engineer Bob Lindskov gave 
the staff report and PowerPoint presentation. 
 

5 of 50



Unapproved Draft–April 28, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 12, 2015 
 

 3 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Lindskov provided 
responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to move forward with the 
project design as presented. 
 
3.  Adopt Resolution Supporting Transportation Investment Package. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report on this item. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, IN STRONG 
SUPPORT OF THE WASHINGTON STATE LEGISLATURE’S 
2015 TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT PACKAGE 

  
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Smith seconded, to 
pass Resolution No. 15-03 in strong support of the Washington State Legislature passing a 
comprehensive transportation investment package during the 2015 legislative session.  
Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Consider Policy for Use of City Seal and Logo. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments, discussed, and asked questions, and Mr. Bolli provided 
responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the policy for use of the city’s seal and logo as provided in the agenda packet. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
amend the motion to revise Policy Item 2.4 to remove the words “behind the city council 
dais.”  Vote:  6-1 (Voting yes; Cimaomo, Harto, Mhoon, Scott, Smith, and Wagner; voting 
no:  Lanza).  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
approve the policy for use of the city’s seal and logo, as provided in the agenda packet, as 
amended.  Vote: 6-1 (Voting yes: Cimaomo, Harto, Mhoon, Scott, Smith, and Wagner; 
voting no:  Lanza).  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to cancel the June 23 regular council 
meeting and hold a special meeting on June 30 due to a lack of quorum as Councilmember 

6 of 50



Unapproved Draft–April 28, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  May 12, 2015 
 

 4 

Cimaomo had planned to be out of town, and Mayor Harto, Mayor Pro Tem Wagner, 
Councilmember Mhoon, and City Manager Regan Bolli had planned to attend the 
Association of Washington Cities conference in Wenatchee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, 26838 166th Place SE, Covington, spoke against mandatory garbage 
collection.  Mr. Stevenson also spoke regarding the planned design of the pedestrian bridge at 
Jenkins Creek Park, commenting that weathered steel did not hold up in another city in the past. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to appoint Mayor Harto as voting delegate 
to Puget Sound Regional Council General Assembly. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

7 of 50



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 12, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #32471-32525, including ACH Payments, in the Amount of 
$209,301.50, Dated May 1, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003700379-1003700394 
inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits, in the Amount of $170,017.41, Dated May 8, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #32471-32525, including ACH 
Payments, in the Amount of $209,301.50, Dated May 1, 2015; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003700379-1003700394 inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits, in the Amount of $170,017.41, Dated May 8, 
2015. 
 
 
 

 

8 of 50



9 of 50



10 of 50



11 of 50



12 of 50



13 of 50



14 of 50



15 of 50



16 of 50



17 of 50



18 of 50



19 of 50



20 of 50



Agenda Item 1  
 Covington City Council  
 Date: May 12, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  PARKS AND RECREATION PRIORITIES ADVISORY COMMITTEE (PRePAC) 

UPDATED CHARTER 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Updated PRePAC Charter 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
It has been a long standing priority of the City Council to provide quality recreation and park 
services to the community.  In order to progress towards this goal, at the 2015 Strategic Planning 
Summit, Council provided direction to staff to create the Parks and Recreation Priorities 
Advisory Committee (PRePAC).  The purpose of this agenda item is to review, adopt and/or 
modify an updated PRePAC charter. 
 
In 2013 Council envisioned a citizen-based effort to recommend strategies for creating the stable, 
sustainable funding stream needed to develop and operate recreation and parks in Covington – 
similar to the Budget Priorities Advisory Committee (BPAC).  The City Council and Parks and 
Recreation Commission had a joint meeting in which they discussed the purpose of the PRePAC.  
Over the course of three meetings, the Parks and Recreation Commission discussed the purpose 
of the committee and developed a charter for Council’s consideration.  The Council adopted the 
charter on September 24, 2013.  Due to staffing constraints the PRePAC was not formed at that 
time.  As the previous charter had a sunset date of December 31, 2014 it is necessary to update 
the charter. 
 
With the direction from Council, staff has reviewed and updated the 2013 charter for review and 
approval. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Modify the charter before adopting it 
2. Request staff to revise the charter 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The estimated cost in staff time and materials, plus including the possibility to conduct a brief 
citizen survey ranges from approximately $4,500 to $15,835.  The low end of the range includes 
the cost of staff time, meeting materials such as three ring binders, and incidentals such as snacks 
for public meetings.  These are routine costs that would be covered by the existing city budget.  
The costs could increase if PRePAC activities include special advertising needs, renting a van for 

21 of 50



a park tour, and/or conducting a brief citizen survey.  These latter are extraordinary costs that are 
not already included in the city budget. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member  _______________  moves, Council member  
_______________  seconds, to adopt a charter in substantial 
form as that attached hereto to form the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Committee (PRePAC). 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney 
  

22 of 50



ATTACHMENT 1 

Parks and Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee Charter 

Purpose 

• The overarching questions for this group iscommittee are:   

o Hhow should Covington’s build a parks and recreation system grow tothat 

meets the community’s adopted goals?needs and wants.   

o How should we pay for it? 

• In answering these questions, tThe committee will: 

o  would be tasked to eEnvision a funding model that would get us todesigned to 

achieve our adopted parks and recreation goals. 

o Educate and engage the community regarding parks, trails and facilities 

development and maintenance.  

• The committee will pProvide a report that includes: 

o The city’s vision adopted goals for parks and recreation services and city 

facilities, as provided in the Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan. 

 Recreation programming 

 Parks 

 Trails 

 Community Recreation Center 

 Aquatic Center 

 City Hall 

 Maintenance Facility 

 Recreation programmingNew ideas and considerations 

o City financial needs for parks and recreation—both operating and capital 

 Recommendations regarding the fee structure 

23 of 50



 The community’s priorities —both operating and capital—within existing 

revenue 

 The community’s priorities for new revenue 

• The community’s willingness to support new revenue 

• The community’s preferred sources of new revenue 

o Recommendations 

 Recommended action plan for obtaining needed revenue – both operating 

and capital 

 Include election date(s), if applicable 

 

Structure 

• Approximately 15 members willing to participate for about 12 months 

o A balanced representation of civic leaders, local business owners, city residents, 

and especially city registered voters. 

o May include city advisory commission members but must not include City 

Council members or City staff 

o Make an effort to include one youth representative from each local high school; 

students should live and/or work in the city 

o No alternates, all members participate equally 

• Staff will seek nominations from City Council members, city advisory commission 

members, city staff, chamber of commerce, service clubs, and the community at-

large 

• Staff will propose members that represent a wide variety of people and viewpoints 

• Council will consider staff’s recommendations and appoint the committee 

• The committee chair will be selected by the Council 

• The committee will designate a different member as vice chair at the third regular 

meeting so that members can get acquainted with each other 

24 of 50



• Vacancies may be filled in like manner 

• The city’s Parks and Recreation Director will serve as liaison between the committee 

and staff 

• The city Communications and Marketing Manager will assist as applicable 

• Other city staff will assist as applicable 

• City Council members and city staff will not attempt to influence committee 

recommendations 

• The committee will sunset upon issuance of a final report and no later than 

December 31, 2014July 29, 2016.  Council may extend the due date for final report 

and the sunset date for the committee, but no later than March 31, 2015. 

 

 

Duties 

• Meet no less than once per month 

• Abide by the Open Public Meetings Act and Public Records Act 

• Make decisions by consensus 

o Make decision by majority vote only when consensus is not possible 

• Keep the community informed 

o Use common language, not government jargon 

o Consider the website, newspaper, newsletter, Facebook, etc. 

• Use limited staff time efficiently i.e. focus on activities with a high return on 

investment 

• Submit decisions cards for the 2015 2017 budget process as applicable (no later than 

July 20142016).  If a ballot issue is recommended the timeframe may be earlier 

depending on the election date chosen. 

• Give a verbal report to Council each month during Commission Reports as 

applicable 

25 of 50



• Prepare a draft report for review and comment by the Parks and Recreation 

Commission and the general public 

• Submit a final report to Council 

o Include minority reports as applicable 

 

26 of 50



                                    Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: May 12, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS FOR COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Councilmember Health Benefits Survey, Revised 12-2014 and 4-2015 
 
PREPARED BY:  Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:   

Executive Summary 
The city council recently requested information regarding the potential for councilmembers to 
acquire health insurance benefits through the city.  The answer is that councilmembers may, 
indeed, receive health insurance benefits through the city and in a variety of ways.  Any 
participation in health benefits, if approved by the council, may take effect for newly-elected 
officials upon assuming their position, immediately upon approval of the related resolution for 
incumbent officials (but allowing for approximately 6 weeks to get all necessary documentation 
in order), and only during an open enrollment period for re-elected officials if they turned 
participation down upon the initial offering. As a side note, councilmembers currently receive 
$5,000 as a life insurance benefit. 

If participation in health insurance benefits is agreed upon, the council may choose to receive 
any amount of city-paid premium coverage for councilmembers and, if they also choose, 
councilmembers’ dependents.  The amount(s) do not need to be equivalent to the proportion of 
city-paid benefit applicable to regular benefitted employees.  Additionally, if participation in a 
medical plan is chosen, at least 50% (4 out of 7) councilmembers must participate.   

Alternatively, if they prefer, council may choose to receive a contribution to a VEBA Health 
Reimbursement Account (HRA), either as the only option or as a choice between participation 
in either a medical plan or VEBA plan.  If the latter is chosen, at least 4 out of 7 
councilmembers, again, must choose to participate in a city medical plan, while the remaining 
number may elect to receive a contribution to a HRA VEBA or opt out of both.  The various 
considerations are explained in greater detail, below, as well as results provided from a survey 
of 42 Washington cities (40 of which responded) in this regard.   
 

Information to be Considered if Selecting Medical Insurance Benefits 
 

A. Overview of the Association of Washington Cities Employee Benefit Trust: 

The Association of Washington Cities (AWC) Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) became self-
insured effective January 1, 2014.  One of the overriding factors in the decision to become 
self-insured was the potential for cost savings to members. Self-insurance allows AWC to 
eliminate several taxes mandatory for fully insured plans, including a 2% state tax and a 2% 
– 3% new (2014) federal insurer tax. While the AWC EBTs retention and stop loss fees 

27 of 50



were extremely competitive as a fully insured plan, these fees were also lowered with the 
aid of a competitive self-insurance marketplace. Along with all these cost savings, AWC is 
able to focus what is now their own trend line, which has been lower than carriers’ trends 
for many years. The AWC EBT also provides excellent customer service, advocacy, and 
wellness programs.  It is, therefore, highly beneficial for a small city such as Covington to 
belong to the AWC EBT.   

B. Elected Official Benefit Participation Criteria: 

AWCs Board of Trustees elected officials participation policy was created to avoid the 
possibility of adverse selection. The following items are participation rules and 
underwriting requirements which pertain specifically to elected officials: 

1.) Elected officials may participate in the health plans currently being offered by their 
city (medical, dental, vision, life and LTD). 

2.) For a city to offer medical coverage, 50% of all elected officials must be enrolled on a 
Trust-sponsored plan. For example, if a city has a mayor and seven council members, 
at least four individuals must enroll in the medical program. There is no contribution 
requirement, the city can choose to pay 0-100% of premium. With regard to all other 
benefit programs, the established participation levels and contribution requirements will 
be applicable. 

3.) All carriers' specific underwriting requirements must be followed once the 50% 
participation level on the medical program is satisfied. These include dependent 
enrollment, participation requirements and premium contribution guidelines. 

4.) Elected officials who do not enroll in the medical plan when initially offered may 
do so only during the open enrollment period. [Note that the annual open enrollment 
period for the City of Covington runs from November 1st  through December 31st.] 

5.) As is applicable to all participants, 75% participation of elected officials is required 
on the dental and vision (75% of the premium must be paid by the employer for dental 
and vision.) 

6.) Elected officials are eligible for COBRA continuation coverage rights. 
7.) Should participation by the elected officials group drop below the minimum 

enrollment levels for elected officials during the year, coverage for all officials will 
be terminated the first of the month following non-compliance (this is not 
considered a COBRA qualifying event). An exception will be made to this policy 
termination rule should the elected official terminate his/her elected position mid-
term. The city/town will be required to come into compliance the first of the month 
following the newly-appointed or newly-elected official’s placement in office. 

8.) Newly elected officials will be allowed to join the plan(s) when they assume their 
position as mayor or council member. Re-elected officials initially offered the plan but 
didn’t participate may consequently only enroll during the open enrollment period. 

C. Medical Insurance Benefits Currently Provided to Regular Benefitted Employees: 

The city currently provides medical benefits in the following percentages to its regular 
benefitted employees.  Those percentages are depicted in the below matrix along with the 
2015 medical premium costs for the employee and first dependent for the Regence 
Healthfirst Plan so council may see what the resulting dollar value is.  The city also offers 

28 of 50



Group Health Cooperative insurance, but the Regence Healthfirst plan has been selected by 
the vast majority. (Please note that while the city formerly considered only 40 hours per 
week as full-time employment, Health Care Reform guidelines now dictate that 30 hours per 
week and above qualify as full-time employment for purposes of receiving medical benefits.) 

 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH BENEFITS AS A POINT OF REFERENCE 
 

Avg 
Wkly  
Hrs 

Wor
ked 

% of 
City-paid 
Premium 

Emp-Deps* 

Equivalent  
Regence $ Amount 

For 2015 
Emp / Spouse+1 Dep 

% of 
Emp-Paid 

Premium 
Emp-Dep 

Equivalent  
Regence $ Amount 

For 2015 
Emp / Spouse+1 Dep 

City Amt / EE Amt of 
$1,749.58 Total 

Premiums For 
Emp, Spouse & 1 Dep 

 
30-40 

 
100% - 81.0% 

 
$698.91 / $851.04 

 
0% - 19.0% 

 
$0 / $199.63 

 
 

$1549.95 / $199.63 
 

 
$1124.43 / $625.15 

 
20-29 

 
100% - 40.5% 

 
$698.91 / $425.52 

 
0% - 59.5% 

 
$0 / $625.15 

   
  0-19 

 
Employees working less than 20 hours on average per week are not provided benefits by the city. 

 
*  While the city-paid percentage is the same for the spouse and dependents, insurance 

premium costs for Regence Healthfirst all differ for the spouse, 1st dependent and 2nd 
dependent. The dollar values above represent what Regence Healthfirst insurance 
premiums cost for the employee only, as well as a spouse and one dependent, to arrive at 
a total premium for a family of three.  Individual Regence Healthfirst premium costs for 
the spouse and dependents are:  Spouse = $704.20; 1st Dependent = $346.47; 2nd 
Dependent = $287.09; with no additional charge for the third or more dependents. 

 
D. Survey of Nearby Washington Cities: 
 

City Manager Regan Bolli provided Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere with a survey of 
councilmember health benefits from December 2014 that he obtained from a Washington 
City/County Management Association member. She further expanded upon that survey to 
ensure inclusion of all of Covington’s seven “comparable” and six “alternate” cities called 
out for purposes of survey comparisons in the city’s Compensation Program Procedure.  
This way, council will have a snapshot of the region as well as its “official” comparable 
cities.  That survey is provided as Attachment 1 hereto. 

 
A total of 42 Washington cities were surveyed, including Covington’s “comparable” and 
“alternate” cities.  Two (2) of the “comparable” cities did not respond.  Of the remaining 40 
cities, 14 (or 35%) provide some type of health benefit—either through full or partial 
payment of medical insurance premiums for the councilmember or councilmember and 
dependents, or through a contribution into a VEBA account or 457 Deferred Compensation 
account.  While 2 of the 7 “comparable” cities did not respond to this survey, the 5 that did 
respond did not offer any health insurance benefits.  Of the 6 “alternate” cities, only one—
Federal Way—provided a $475-per-month deposit into a VEBA account.  There is a wide 
diversity in the amount of that benefit, with, perhaps, the one repeat being that premiums 
are paid the same as for regular employees.  Where offered, the range of the cost for the 
monthly benefit goes from a low of $300 per month to as high as $2,346 per month 

 

29 of 50



Considering the part-time status of all Covington’s councilmembers, keeping their benefit 
on par with that of employees would indicate either a medical premium package of 100% 
toward employee and 50% city-paid dependent premiums, or a pre-determined amount 
deposited in the HRA VEBA.  More information on a potential HRA VEBA is contained in 
Item F, below. 
 

E.  Participation in Dental and Vision Plans: 
 
As with medical plans, the council may also choose to participate in dental and vision plans.  
The plans that the city offers are Washington Dental Service Plan F (with the Orthodontia 
Plan III rider) and the Vision Service $25 Deductible Plan (VSP).  While the city 
additionally offers Willamette Dental, only the premium cost for Washington Dental 
Service is depicted below because the Willamette Plan is not popular and also because 
premium costs are very close.  As noted in B.5, above, 75% participation of elected officials 
is required on the dental and vision coverage.  Below are the 2015 monthly premiums for 
each plan, currently paid for in full by the city: 
 

                              Washington Dental Service                      Vision Service Plan 
 

 $  56.02 = EE                                     $  9.05 = EE 
 $106.68 = EE + 1  dep $18.10 = EE + 1 dep 
 $183.99 = EE + 2 or more dep $27.15 = EE + 2 or more deps 

 
F. Choosing a HRA VEBA Contribution in Lieu of Participation in Health Plans: 
 

If the council wishes to pursue something other than participation in the city’s medical plans 
as a health benefit, they may choose a HRA VEBA instead of a city-paid contribution 
toward a medical premium for all councilmembers; or, if at least 4 councilmembers wish to 
participate in a city-sponsored health plan and any remaining councilmembers would rather 
participate in a VEBA rather than a city-sponsored medical plan, they may do so.  
Covington’s HRA VEBA Consultant Brian Riehs advised that if a HRA VEBA contribution 
is chosen in lieu of the medical premium benefit, 50% to 75% of the cost of the medical 
premium is commonly chosen as the amount to be deposited into the HRA VEBA.   
 
As a last consideration for a councilmember HRA VEBA, if a councilmember were eligible 
to be covered in the city's health insurance plan, but waived coverage and attested they were 
covered on another qualified group medical plan, their HRA VEBA contributions would go 
to the Standard HRA, which means they could access the funds while they are active 
council members at the city, as well as after they separate. If they did not

 

 have other 
qualified group medical coverage, their HRA VEBA contributions would go to a “post 
separation” HRA, which means they would not have access to those funds until after 
separating (i.e., they were no longer serving on the council). 

As a side note, the city deposits the 2% medical premium reduction granted by AWC into 
each benefitted employee’s HRA VEBA account if and when the city successfully wins the 
annual WellCity Award (because winning the award with the related discount is due to the 
wellness program participation efforts of the employees).  Additionally, employees vote 
annually to deposit an employee-paid amount into the HRA VEBA account.  However, 
since the WellCity award is granted, in large part, based on employee participation in the 

30 of 50



city’s wellness program, these considerations need not be extended to councilmembers who 
do not have the opportunity to actively support the city’s wellness program. 

 

 
Summary 

If the council so chooses, councilmembers may participate in the city’s health benefit—either 
through participation in one of the city’s offered health plans or through participation in a HRA 
VEBA account.  The follow covers the conditions that must be satisfied for all the different 
options: 
 
The representative monthly combined premium for the councilmember, only, for medical, 
dental and vision plans if paid by the city at 100% would be $763.98.  
 
If the city offers the councilmembers ONLY health insurance: 
 

− Council would need to determine what the city-paid levels would be. 
− At least 4 of 7 councilmembers must participate, and the rest may opt out, if they 

choose, but may not

 

 instead request additional compensation in lieu of the insurance 
benefit.   

If the city offers the councilmembers the choice of health insurance OR

 

 a deposit into an 
HRA VEBA: 

− Council would need to determine what the city-paid levels would be for both the 
medical premiums and the HRA VEBA deposit. 

− Any councilmembers remaining after at least 4 participate in the city’s health insurance 
plan may opt to have monthly deposits put into a HRA VEBA in lieu of medical 
premium benefits.   

− If a councilmember who opts out of city-provided health insurance and chooses the 
HRA VEBA deposits can attest that they have other qualified group medical coverage, 
they can receive Standard HRA VEBA contributions, meaning they could begin 
accessing the funds in their account while still serving as a councilmember. 

− If a councilmember who opts out of city-provided health insurance chooses the HRA 
VEBA but does not have other qualified group medical coverage, they would receive a 
Post-separation HRA VEBA, meaning they could not access funds from their account 
until after separating from the city. 

− A councilmember may opt out of both, but may not

 

 request additional compensation in 
lieu of either the medical plan or HRA VEBA deposit. 

If the city offers the councilmembers only a deposit into an HRA VEBA

 

, but no medical 
plan benefits: 

− Council would need to determine what the city-paid deposit would be. 
− The HRA VEBA contributions would go into a “post separation plan” whether or not 

the participating councilmember had qualifying group medical coverage outside of the 
city.  This means that they would not

− A councilmember could chose to opt out of an HRA VEBA deposit, but may 

 be able to access funds from their account until 
after separating from the city. 

not instead 
request additional compensation in lieu of an HRA VEBA deposit. 

31 of 50



The representative monthly combined premium for the councilmember, a spouse and one 
dependent for medical, dental and vision plans if the city paid 100% of the premium cost for the 
councilmember and 40.5% for the spouse and dependent (which it would ordinarily be what is 
city-paid for a part-time employee working 20-29 hours on average per week.) would be 
$1,124.43.  With a city-paid dependent premium cost of 40.5%, a third dependent would cost an 
additional $116.27.  There is no additional charge for more than a three dependents (spouse plus 
two or more dependents).   
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
 1.  The City Council may choose not to participate in health benefits at this time. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:   
If the City Council chooses to participate in health benefits, the ultimate cost is dependent not 
only on the benefit(s) the council chooses, but also the level of benefit acquired by each council 
member. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution           Motion      X   Other 
 

This item is for discussion purposes only.  Staff seeks direction from the 
council on whether or not to proceed with a resolution adopting some form 
of health benefit(s) for councilmembers. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

32 of 50



ATTACHMENT 1 

Councilmember Health Benefits Survey, 12-2014 and Updated 4-2015 

City/Town Are health benefits offered to council members? Benefit Cost 
Auburn No 

 Bonney Lake * No 
 Bothell No 
 Burien Yes-provide $600/mo. to VEBA account  $600 /mo. 

Covington No 
 Des Moines ** No 
 DuPont No 
 Edgewood No 
 Enumclaw ** No 
 Everett 

       
Yes-Mayor & Council 90% of medical premium, 100% dental & vision, life insurance Mayor $1,727/mo. 
Mayor ($33.38, Council $11.35 mo) Council  1,705/mo. 

Federal Way ** Yes-provide $475/mo. to VEBA account $475/mo. 
Fife ** No 

 Fircrest No 
 Gig Harbor No 
 Issaquah * No 
 Kenmore ** No 
 Kent Yes-but dependent premiums not paid by employer $611/mo. 

Kirkland Yes-but not dependent premiums. Life, AD&D, paid by City. Medical opt out $300. $300-$763/mo. 
Lacey No 

 Longview No-offered, but AWC minimum City Council participation not met. 
 Maple Valley * No 
 Mercer Island No 
 Mill Creek * NO RESPONSE 
 Milton No 
 Mt Lake Terrace * No 
 Olympia No 
 Orting No 
 Puyallup Yes-premiums are paid the same as for regular employees (100% City paid). $2,346/mo. 

Redmond Yes-paid same as part time employees. 50% cost share for premiums, includes dep. $1,099/mo. 
Renton Yes-but not dependent premiums. Medical, dental and vision coverage provided. $582/mo. 
SeaTac No-prior to 2014 paid for VEBA. Now 457 contribution instead. 457 - $1,538/mo. 
Shelton Yes-premiums are paid the same as for regular employees. 

 Shoreline Yes-currently all opt out and receive 457 contributions instead. 457 - $876 mo 
Steilacoom No 

 Sumner No 
 Tacoma Yes-premiums are paid the same as for regular employees. $1,293/mo. 

Tukwila Yes-but not dependents. Group Health $706.27 mo Self funded plan $509.94 mo $510 to $706/mo. 
Tumwater ** No 

 University Place * No 
 Vancouver Yes-medical and dental insurance. May opt out, but no incentive. Life ins.  $953/mo. 

Woodinville * NO RESPONSE 
 Yelm No 
   * Indicates "comparable" city to Covington, as called out in the city's Compensation Program Procedure. 

** Indicates "alternative" comparable city to Covington, also as called out in the city's Compensation Program Procedure. 
 33 of 50



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 14, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  2015 FIRST QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. 2015 First Quarter Report 
2. Quarterly Performance Reports by Fund 
3. Major Revenue Comparison   
4. Current Investment Listing 

 
PREPARED BY:   
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
It is the policy of the City and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to provide financial 
reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion         X     Other 
 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

34 of 50



ATTACHMENT 1

35 of 50



36 of 50



37 of 50



38 of 50



39 of 50



40 of 50



41 of 50



ATTACHMENT 2

42 of 50



43 of 50



44 of 50



45 of 50



46 of 50



ATTACHMENT 3

47 of 50



ATTACHMENT 4

48 of 50



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  May 12, 2015 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 26, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49 of 50



 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, May 26, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 6, 2015 Special Meeting, May 12, 2015 Joint Study Session with CEDC & Chamber 

Board, and May 12, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Appoint Voting Delegate for Association of Washington Cities Annual business Meeting (Council) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  May 14 meeting 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  May 20 meeting 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  May 14 meeting 
• Planning Chair Bill Judd:  May 7 and May 21 meetings 
• Future Meetings: Economic Development Council:  Next meeting May 28 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. To Receive Testimony on Proposed 2016-2021 Transportation Improvement Program (Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Appointments to Arts Commission (Council) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400) 

Draft 
as of 05/06/15 

 

50 of 50

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	05-12-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, May 12, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 1 04.28.2015 Special Joint Study Session w-HS Commission
	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 2 04.28.2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet 05-12-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item C-2 Attachments
	Item 1 Blue Sheet and Attachment 2015-5-12 PRePAC Charter and Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet and Attachment 1 05-12-15 Discuss City insurance for Councilmembers
	B. Elected Official Benefit Participation Criteria:

	Item 3 Blue Sheet 5_14_15 First Qtr Report
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachments 1-4
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	05-26-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, May 26, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE




